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Trinity Cathedral is a single-story, common-bond brick structure of

Gothic style, with the main section a cruciform. The building is -
“asymmetrical, having an engaged spherical baptistry at the left of the

west elevation and a square two-story engaged corner tower on the right.

Triangular dormers emerge from the high gable roofs that cover the
nave and transepts, while a hipped roof caps the tower. Drop-arch
gable porches provide entrances to the west end of the nave and to the
tower on the south.

The pointed—-arch windows signify the universal feature of Gothic
architecture. The central motif of the west elevation is a drop-arch
window with round trefoil tracery. Large north and south transept
windows also have drop-arches but with intersected tracery. Smaller
lancet-arch windows without tracery are located at various locations
throughout the building. Small-eye windows are employed directly
beneath the gables of the nave and transept and in the centers of the
two exposed sides of the tower. Stained glass is used in all of the
windows to create colorful pictorial representations of religious ideas.

The Gothic quality of the Cathedral is further developed by the
buttressed masonry walls. Buttresses are built against the walls of
the church in strategic locations, and angle buttresses meet at right
angles at the corners of the tower.

The nave of the Cathedral was completed in 1884 with the crossing and
transepts built in 1889. 1In 1924 a chapel was a@ded at the northeast,
right-angular intersection of the nave and transept. The chapel is a
small room, and light enters through three pairs of small lancet-arch
windows.

The chancel alter, which has a large wood carving of Christ as its
center, was given to the church as a memorial in 1924. The original
altar was removed and placed in the chapel that same year.

Trinity Cathedral is in an excellent state of preservation. The
interior and exterior blend with Gothic harmony as an example of a
type of architecture that has enriched Arkansas.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The architectural composition and events relating to its construction
make Trinity Cathedral an important historical feature of religious
growth in Arkansas. As the Episcopal Bishop's first official chair

of authquty in Arkansas, Trlnlty Cathedral was organlzed and built
““to become the pr1n01pal church of the Arkansas Episcopal diocese.

Construction of the church was largely the responsibility and achiev-
ement of its founding Bishop the Right Reverend.Henry Niles Pierce....
When Pierce was elected the fourth Missionary Bishop of Arkansas and the
Indian Territory in 1870, he set out to establish religious order in

the undeveloped Arkansas.

After nine years of service as a missionary bishop, Pierce recognized
the need for a cathedral at Little Rock and approached the people of
Christ Church about assuming cathedral responsibilities. They declined
the offer; so he set out to single handedly raise the money to bulld

a cathedral.

Contributions for the cathedral came in small amounts, with the largest
single contribution in the amount of $250.00. 1In 1882 Pierce had
enough money to buy land at the corner of 17th and Spring Streets, and:
construction started two years later. The plans for constructing the
building came from Pierce's son, the Reverend A, W. Pierce, and the
responsibility for the task of construction was placed in the hands of
master-builder Ambrose Pettefer.

By October,1884,the first section of the church was completed, consisting
of the nave, tower, and baptistry. The east end of the structure was
boarded up at the crossing leaving only a small entrance there, and the
altar was placed on a raised, improvised chancel under the west window.

In the spring of 1889 the crossing and transepts were completed, and the
altar was moved to the north transept wall. Due to a lack of funds,
Pierce was unable to finalize construction on the chancel until 1892
when the altar was at last moved to its proper place in the east end of
the building. It had taken Pierce thirteen years to realize the fruits
of his labor.
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A major addition to the church came in 1924 when Pierce's daughter,
Mrs. Elizabeth Lyman, gave the chapel in her father's memory. The
chapel is attached to the northeast intersection of the transept
and nave walls; it completed the embodiment of the structure of the
cathedral.

Trinity Cathedral has served the Arkansas Episcopal diocese as the
bishop's official seat since it was built in 1884.

The single-story common-bond brick structure was the chair of
authority for directing the growth of the Episcopal denomination

in Arkansas. The asymmetrical building with engaged baptistry and
two-story corner tower has sustained structural strength and solid-
arity as it provided shelter for the many religious services taking
place in it for 91 years.



Form No. 19-300a

(Rev. 10-74)
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR RS U BTy
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
RECEIVED APR 5 ]976
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM DATE ENTERED WAY 13 F7P
CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE two

Architecturally Trinity Cathedral is significant in that it is possibly Arkansas'
best preserved example of "Band-saw"or "Jig-saw" Gothic. In Trinity Cathedral
central Arkansas' early artisans recreated virtually every medieval form, not with
chisel and stone however; but with band-saw and clear pine.

The cathedral is the traditional cruciform plan with its transepts ascending to
full nave height at the crossing. The nave is framed with wood beams trimmed with
bent pine planks and molding to resemble the towering stone and carved wooden arches
of larger more costly cathedrals. Sawn wooden brackets over the side-aisles at
each column bay are extended to give the illusion of flying buttresses.

The cathedral is dimly 1lit and all wood is darkly stained. Light streams down
from above through six lancet clerestory windows above the intersection of the
side aisle and nave.

Above the chancel to the east and over the main entrance to the nave from the west
are large drop-arched windows with round trefoil tranceries. North and south
trancept windows also have drop arches but with intersected tracery. Smaller
lancet arch windows are located throughout the building. Small eye windows are
employed directly beneath the gables of the nave and trancepts and in the centers
of the two exposed sides of the tower. Stained glass is used in all of the
windows to create colorful pictorial representations of religious ideas. The
chancel altar, which has a large wood carving of Christ, was given to the church
in 1924. The original altar was removed and placed in the 'smaller chapel.

The exterior is dark brown brick laid in common bond with brick buttressed walls.
The building is asymmetrical, having an engaged spherical baptistry at one side
of the nave and a two-storey engaged tower to the other. Dormers emerge from
the nave roof at each clerestory window.

The interior and exterior blend with Gothic harmony. Trinity Cathedral is in an
excellent state of preservation, and is an fine example "Band-saw Gothic" religious
architecture in Arkansas.
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Lyman, Elizabeth Pierce. History of Trinity Cathedral. Unpublished brochure,
1934.
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